
 
          Sinclair Water Authority 

126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 

 

Agenda 

Monday, March 14, 2022 ◊ 5:00 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

2. Public Participation 

 

Minutes 
3. Approval of Minutes - January 10, 2022 Regular Meeting 

 

Reports I 
4. Introduction of Assistant Project Manager James Cupo 

5. Operations Report 

 

New Business 
6. Approval of Financial and Personnel Records Retention Policy 

7. Approval of Operations Records Retention Policy 

8. Approval of Discard/Surplus of in-operable or replaced Lab Equipment 

9. Bank Signatures 

 

Old Business 
None 

 

Reports II 
10. Plant Production Reports 

11. Financial Reports 

 

Closing 
12. Next Meeting - May 9, 2022 

13. Adjournment 

Sinclair Water 

1



File Attachments for Item:

3. Approval of Minutes - January 10, 2022 Regular Meeting

2



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 3  

January 10, 2022   

 

 
          Sinclair Water Authority 

126 Cay Drive Milledgeville, GA 31061 

Phone (706) 485-8993   Fax (706) 485-8994 

 

Minutes 

Monday, January 10, 2022 ◊ 5:00 PM 

Sinclair Water Plant 

 

The Sinclair Water Authority met on Monday, January 10, 2022 at approximately 5:00 PM at the 

Sinclair Water Plant, 126 Cay Drive, Milledgeville, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Robert Brown 

Member Sammy Hall 

Member Tommy Jefferson 

Member Ed Walker 

Member Billy Webster 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

Christina Corn 

Danny Lyndall 

Don North 

Brice Doolittle 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at approximately 5:01 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes.) 

 

2. Public Participation 

None 

 

Minutes 
3. Approval of Minutes 

a. November 8, 2021 Regular Meeting 

b. December 6, 2021 Called Meeting 

Motion to approve the November 8, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Motion made by Member Hall, Seconded by Member Jefferson. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Walker 

 

Member Webster arrived during this item. 

 

 

 

 

Sinclair Water 

3



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 3  

January 10, 2022   

 

Motion to approve the December 6, 2021 Called Meeting Minutes. 

Motion made by Member Hall, Seconded by Member Jefferson. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Walker, 

Member Webster 

 

Reports I 
4. Operations Report presented by ESG, Inc. 

Danny Lyndall, Regional Manager of ESG Operations reported the following: 

 ESG began operations on December 28, 2021 

 SWA staff has been transitioned to the ESG team 

 COVID-19 has impacted some of the startup plans 

 Most of the SWA assets have been cataloged 

 ESG's HR department completed benefits enrollment 

 Clean up and organization of the interior and exterior of the facility has begun 

 Upcoming projects around the plant 

 Safety overview completed and upcoming safety training planned 

 Raw Water Intake 

 Flocculation / Sedimentation Basins 

 Basket Strainers 

 Membrane Filters 

 Chemical Feed / CIP System 

 High Service Pumps 

 Miscellaneous Operational 

 

Mr. Lyndall also submitted and reviewed a draft Capital Improvement Plan. 

(Copy of detailed report and plan made a part of the minutes.) 

 

New Business 
5. Welcome New Member - Mr. Ed Walker 

Mr. Ed Walker was welcomed back to SWA board.  Mr. Walker was on the board eight years 

ago. 

 

6. Approval to close Payroll Account 

Motion to close the Payroll Account. 

Motion made by Member Jefferson, Seconded by Member Webster. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Walker, 

Member Webster 
 

7. Approval of Resolution to Terminate 401 and 457 Contribution Plan 

Motion to approve the Resolution to Terminate the 401 and 457 Contribution Plan. 

Motion made by Member Jefferson, Seconded by Member Webster. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Walker, 

Member Webster 

(Copy of resolution made a part of the minutes.) 

 

Member Hall advised that Baldwin County needs to clean out their water tank which will affect 

people on Mays Road.  This is in the planning stage and will be coordinated with ESG to make 

sure the people in this area are taken care of. 

4



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 3  

January 10, 2022   

 

 

Old Business 

None 

 

Reports II 
8. Plant Production Reports 

Plant Production reports are in the meeting package to review. 

 

Member Jefferson pointed out the inconsistencies with Baldwin County's numbers through the 

year made planning difficult.  Member Hall advised that the numbers are leveling out and were 

due to the addition of new customers throughout the year. 

 

No action was taken. 

 

9. Financial Reports 

Financial reports are in the meeting package to review. 

 

Member Jefferson commented that the year ended as expected and everything is in good shape. 

 

Chairman Brown inquired about ending up with a negative number in the Workers Comp 

account.  Christina explained that is was from a rebate check received because December wasn't 

paid due to going up under ESG. 

 

Christina also inquired about where to put the $5000 from the closed payroll account and was 

advised to move it to the reserve account. 

 

No action was taken. 

 

Closing 
10. Next Meeting - March 14, 2022 

The next meeting is scheduled for March 14, 2022. 

 

11. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Member Jefferson, Seconded by Member Hall. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Brown, Member Hall, Member Jefferson, Member Walker, 

Member Webster 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 5:54 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Robert Brown 

Clerk        Chairman 

 

5



File Attachments for Item:

5. Operations Report

6



    REPORT TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS   

 

  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

SWA BOARD MEETING 
March 10, 2022 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sinclair Water Authority 

7



ESG MONTHLY BOARD REPORT – MARCH 2022 

PAGE-2  
 

ESG management and staff are pleased to present this update to the Sinclair Water Authority 
Board of Directors covering operations and maintenance activities for the prior month. It is our 
privilege to serve our community with high quality utility services and support the citizens of 
Baldwin and Putnam Counties 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

ESG is implementing process changes for more efficient use of chemicals. Specifically, the 
chlorine levels leaving the plant are now at 1.75 mg/L rather than 2.4 mg/L. This change should 
assist both EPWSA as well as Baldwin County with DBP levels in the system.  
 
ESG has hired a full-time plant manager, James Cupo, who will be responsible for the day-to-
day operation of the plant.  
 
The membrane maintenance team from ESG’s Forsyth County Project came in to assist SWA 
personnel with inspection, maintenance, and repair of the four membrane trains. Stemming from 
the results of this work, membrane recovery rates were increased to 93%. This means more water 
to be processed through the membranes before the cleaning cycle occurs.  
 
The Baldwin County Chamber of Commerce Leadership class visited for a plant tour. There 
were 18 visitors for this tour.  
 
ESG has accomplished a great deal in the past two months and the following sections will 
provide greater detail on the activities of ESG Operations in this timeframe.  
 

ADMINISTRATION 

Members of the ESG Startup Team have been on site for the past two months inventorying all 
SWA assets and developing preventative maintenance schedules for each asset. ESG Operations’ 
computerized maintenance management software (CMMS) also allows for tracking of historical 
costs and maintenance on each asset which will help maximize the life of equipment. 
 
SWA management has developed a capital forecast to better plan for large capital projects should 
funding become available. This forecast allows for a clear direction for all future capital 
purchases.  
 
SWA staff have attended several more safety and operational training classes, including: 

• Laboratory Safety and Hygiene 

• Hazardous Material / Chemical Usage, Communication, Safety, and Hygiene   

• Confined Space Training 

• Personal Protective Equipment and General Safety 

• Equipment Checkout and Usage 
 
Plant staff are continuing efforts to declutter, organize, and clean up the facility.   

8



ESG MONTHLY BOARD REPORT – MARCH 2022 

PAGE-3  
 

         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Pictured above before and after photos of the maintenance shed. 

 

*Pictured to the left are before and after photos of the records storage in the high service pump building. 

 

 

 

*Pictured to the right are members of the 
Baldwin County Leadership group on tour with 

Don North (pictured far right) ESG’s Senior 
Water Operations Specialist. 

 

 

 

 

9



ESG MONTHLY BOARD REPORT – MARCH 2022 

PAGE-4  
 

MAINTENANCE  

ESG-operated projects utilize an asset management software, PSD, for tracking life cycle costs 
of client-owned assets. All physical assets managed by ESG at the SWA project are entered into 
the software and preventative maintenance schedules created where appropriate. These schedules 
auto-generate preventative maintenance work orders (PMs) to help us focus our maintenance 
efforts to extend the life cycle of SWAs’ assets. During the previous month, SWA staff 
completed 2 preventative work orders and completed 24 corrective maintenance work orders. 
Over time, it is anticipated that preventative work orders will exceed corrective maintenance.  

SAFETY 

ESG’s corporate Lab Director, Myra Zabec, provided a 
lab safety overview and performed one-on-one lab 
safety training to operators. ESG’s Safety Manager has 
also been onsite to perform safety training in 
Lockout/Tagout, confined space, hazard 
communication, chemical handling, first aid, and fall 
protection.  
 
Several other safety training modules have been 
assigned to the team through ESG’s Learning 
Management Platform. In addition, March Safety 
Toolbox Talks have been assigned to each team 
member.  
 
 

OPERATIONS 

The ESG team has continued to work towards identifying and addressing all issues within the 
plant as well as finding ways to optimize each part of the treatment process. Several corrective 
actions and plant improvements have been completed or are currently in progress.  

Raw Water Intake 

• Repairs continue to be made on the Chlorine Dioxide feed water line. With the help of 
the EPWSA team, seven leaks have been repaired in the past 2 months. This issue is 
being addressed with a more reliable and permanent solution. 

• An additional break on the Chlorine Dioxide feed water line was discovered and repaired 
inside the Raw Water Intake Building. Additional steps to monitor Raw Water Intake 
processes are being implemented.  

• SE Diving Services, LLC completed an inspection and cleaning of the raw water intake 
screens. 

 

 

10



ESG MONTHLY BOARD REPORT – MARCH 2022 

PAGE-5  
 

 

 

 

Above left: the diver prepares to enter the lake 
to inspect and clean the raw water intake 
screens. 

Above right: A diver prepares to enter the 
clearwell to inspect and clean and sediment in 
the bottom of the tank.  

At right: the command center allows the dive 
team to see what the diver is seeing inside the 
tank as the diver inspects the piping and valves 
under the water. 

 

 

 

 

 

11



ESG MONTHLY BOARD REPORT – MARCH 2022 

PAGE-6  
 

Flocculation / Sedimentation Basins 

• Sedimentation Basin 1 and 2 were drained and cleaned. Several feet of accumulated 
sludge were removed from each basin. 

• The drains on the flocculation and sedimentation basins have been plugged, halting the 
continuous leaking of basin water to the lagoons. This has allowed us to stop feeding 
sodium bisulfite. 

• Increased Jar testing has further optimized alum dosing, which has reduced chemical 
usage and improved the quality of water going to the membranes which, in turn, should 
help extend the life of the membranes. 

Membrane Filters 

• ESG’s membrane maintenance team from the Forsyth County Project assessed each 
membrane train and made repairs as needed. Membrane performance increased 
significantly after repairs were completed. The maintenance team is scheduled to return 
on March 20th to complete additional repairs. 

• Membrane inspection and repairs will be increased and conducted on a scheduled basis.  

• Several air leaks were identified and repaired on membrane process valves and headers. 
Parts have been ordered to complete additional repairs. 

Chemical Feed / CIP System  

• After inspection, the CIP heater was found to have several bad filaments. ESG 
recommends replacing the heater due to the immense importance of heated membrane 
cleans. 

Clearwell/High Service Pumps 

• SE Diving Services, LLC completed an inspection and cleaning of the Clearwell tank. It 
was found to be in good condition and had minimal buildup on interior surfaces. 

• The distribution lines leaving the High Service Building going to the Baldwin and 
Putnam County meters were located and marked in a more visible and lasting way. This 
will make it easier to locate the lines in the future and protects the lines from future 
construction. 

Miscellaneous Operational 

• After meeting with Baldwin and Putnam County representatives, it has been agreed upon 
that SWA will begin to reduce its Chlorine residual leaving the plant. This will help to 
reduce the formation of disinfection byproducts.  

• SWA has been approved to begin a tracer study to determine the maximum residence 
time in the Baldwin County and Putnam County water distribution systems. 

• After a manufacturer error, Quincy replaced broken air compressor at no additional cost. 

12



ESG MONTHLY BOARD REPORT – MARCH 2022 

PAGE-7  
 

• Staff has been trained on the use of ESG’s CMMS software for asset tracking and 
management. All employees have started utilizing the software to create service requests 
and work orders. This has greatly improved our ability to track, prioritize, and complete 
plant maintenance. Additional training is planned for the implementation of our 
preventative maintenance program. 

• Operators continue to improve tank level management. This allows us to halt production 
at times better suited for scheduled maintenance and plant improvement projects. 

• Old membrane frames were repurposed into shelves for organizing and storing plant 
records. 

Projects for the coming months: 

• Continued clean up and organization of SWA facilities 

• Mowing all fence lines, inside and outside and repairing damaged fence sections 

• Organizing spare parts and supplies 

• Repair/replace sludge collectors in sedimentation basins 

 

13



File Attachments for Item:

6. Approval of Financial and Personnel Records Retention Policy

14



15



16



17



File Attachments for Item:

7. Approval of Operations Records Retention Policy

18



19



File Attachments for Item:

8. Approval of Discard/Surplus of in-operable or replaced Lab Equipment

20



21



File Attachments for Item:

9. Bank Signatures

22



23



File Attachments for Item:

10. Plant Production Reports

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



File Attachments for Item:

11. Financial Reports

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49


	Top
	Item #3.	2022-03-14 SWA Minutes
	DRAFT 01-10-2022 SWA Minutes

	Item #5.	2022-03-14 SWA Operations Report
	SWA Board Report March 2022 Final

	Item #6.	2022-03-14 SWA Retention-Financial
	New Business-Retention Policy-Financial and Personnel 031422

	Item #7.	2022-03-14 SWA Retention Operations
	New Business-Retention Policy-Operations 031422

	Item #8.	2022-03-04 SWA Surplus
	New Business-Surplus Inventory 031422

	Item #9.	2022-03-14 SWA Bank Signatures
	New Business-Bank Signatures 031422

	Item #10.	2022-03-14 SWA Plant Reports
	Plant Reports 031422

	Item #11.	2022-03-14 SWA Financials
	Financial Reports 031422

	Bottom

